PIETRABBONDANTE.





Location:


Pietrabbondante, Molise. (originally Samnium). Extraurban sanctuary, (approx. 200 m x 150 m.), consisted of a small temple, socalled A (mid. 2nd. Century B.C.) perhaps with a theatrical area behind it of which nothing now exists, a monumental theatre (greek-inspired) combinded with a large temple, socalled B, (end of 2nd century B.C.) placed behind and above the auditorium, at a higher level, i.e. a theatre temple, and a porticus with shops on each sides of the temple. The orientation of the entire sanctuary was North-west – South-east. It might have been dedicated to Victory and it was perhaps the federal sanctuary of the towns of ancient Samnium.





Excavations:


The existence of ancient ruins in the Pietrabbondante area were mentioned for the first time in 1840, (Accademia Ercolanese), but it was not until 1857 that excavations started, to be followed in 1858, 1871-72, 1913, 1925 and finally with major excavations in 1959 up until present days carried out by the Italians. The theatre was already identified in 1857, temple A in 1913, but it was not until 1959 that temple B situated behind the theatre was found.





Stade of preservation:


Relative good, both as far as the theatre and the temple are concerned.





THE THEATRE TEMPLE OF PIETRABBONDANTE.





The Theatre:





The Auditorium:


The auditorium was constructed partly up against the southern part of Monte Saraceno and  partly on an earth bank, held back by analemmata in poligonal masonry made of hard local lime stone. The auditorium which faced south-east was of a horseshoe shaped form, (diam. 54 m.). Horizontally it was divided into 2 sections: prohedria and ima cavea. The prohedria was not subdivided, but ima cavea was on the contrary divided into 6 seating sections by 5 staircases, in addition to two staircases along the analemmata. The end of the analemmata walls were decorated with a sculptural decoration in form of atlantes figures. The 3 rows of seats (Height 0.40 m., depth 0.35 m. in the prohedria of stone all had backlean and were finish off with sculptural decorated armlean in form of winged paws. Access to the prohedria was made directly from orchestra, whereas access to the ima cavea took place via 5 steps of semicircular form. The ima cavea had a double row of seat also of stone, but without backlean (Height 0.40m., depth 0.35 m.). It is thought that  wooden benches were used for the rest of the ima cavea. The seating capacity of the theatre is not known, (perhaps 1000 seats).





The Orchestra:


The orchestra was of a horseshoe shaped form (diam. 11 m.). Underneath the auditorium, orchestra and the stage building along the axis of the theatre there was a drainage system.





The Stage Building:


The stage building  was built in brick work and at the end and corners in opus quadratum. Originally the front of the stage (length 37.70 m., depth 4.15 m.) had 5 doors flanked by semi columns giving access to the area underneath the stage itself. From this service area 3 doors gave access to corridors  and the rooms of skene at the groundlevel . These corridors were also closed by doors at the back of the stage building. Up against the wall of what originally formed the scaenae frons, still at the groundlevel there were 10 square blocks with a hole in the middle, serving some technical function so that mobile senery/sets could be raised and put in place on what might have been a quite simple and bare scaenae frons with 3 doors,  judging from the doors preserved at ground level. Skene (length 37.50 m., depth 5 m. consisted of  6 rooms. On each side of the stage building itself were two side buildings.


Behing the stage building there was a colonnade.





The Access:


Access to the theatre took place from behind the stage building through corridors situated between the stage building and its two side buildings. At the height of the scaenae frons these were closed with a gate. At the height of the front of the stage these entrances took a sharp runing towards the orchestra which then were reached through arches. There was also aother access to the heigher part of the audiorium (situated on the axis) from the temple courtyard above.





The porticus complex and its temple:  (temple, altars, porticus).





The Temple:


The temple, B, of an italic type, was situated behind the auditorium at a height of 5.50 m. above the level of orchestra and with a distance of 9 m. from the outer wall of the auditorium. The temple had a high podium, (height 3.75 m., length 35 m., width 22 m). It was a prostyle and tetrastyle temple with a triple cella. The pronaos was 22 m. x 21.50 and the central cella 7.2 m. x 11 m., the side ones 4.8 m. x 7.5. In front of the staircase, (width 4.60 m.), leading up to the temple are remains of altars, original there were probably 3  in correspondence with the triple division of the cella, but today only remains of the central and the one to the right (coming from the theatre) are preserved. The temple might have been dedicated to Victory,  based on an inscribtion on a piece of bronze, (a lastra), (inscribtion no. 8), found in the theatre.


Various architectural fragments in stone have been found, friezes, cornices, columns, some of corinthian order, as well as in terracotta, especially masks of maenads and satyrs as well as fragments of sculptural decoration, among those a male head.


On the front of the temple, on its podium, an inscribtion was found, referring to a certain Caius Statius Clarus, a senator, who probably was involved in the construction of this temple.





The Porticus:


A porticus with shops where the pilgrims probably could buy their votive objects were situated on each side of the temple.





The Access:


Access to the temple and its courtyard was done partly from the theatre, but also through the colonnades of the porticus, situated on each side of the temple.                      





Date:


The date of the theatre is based in particular on stilistic comparisons with other theatres, especially regarding the sculptural decoration of the prohedria and analemmata. The theatre should  be dated around the period 150 – 100/75 B.C. (M.J. Strazzulla).


The  date of the temple is based on the archaeological material, i.e. in a period in between 241/222 post quem and 80 B.C. ante quem. However the unity in planning of both theatre and temple and comparison with other theatre temple points in direction of a date around the end of the 2nd century B.C. The santuary seems abandonded sometimes in the 1st century B.C.
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……….





The importance for the theatre of Pompey project : (Inspiration: built before, contemporary with, after the construction of the theatre of Pompey).





Theatre temple and built before the theatre of Pompey in Rome; Theatre / temple – clearly planned as a unity on principles of axiality, frontality and visual effects situated within a rectangular temenos. Although there was no real structural connection between the two buildings there surely was a visual and optical unity in the building programme explained by the fact, that not only would the pulpitum / stage be visible from the stylobate / podium of the temple, but also if a person was placed in the orchestra he or she would still be visible. They were therefore reasons for the 9 m gap between temple and theatre, and the position of a the temple at a higher level 5.5. m. than the theatre.


Dedication to Victory?. The whole complex also functioned as a political, social and religious centre., like the theatre of Pompey in Rome.
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